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CAUSE NO. 141-307474-19 
 

VICTOR MIGNOGNA, 
Plaintiff, 

 
v. 
 

FUNIMATION PRODUCTIONS, LLC, 
JAMIE MARCHI, MONICA RIAL AND 
RONALD TOYE, 

Defendants. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT 
 
 

141ST JUDICIAL DISTRICT  
 
 
 
 

TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS 

DEFENDANT JAMIE MARCHI’S MOTION TO DISMISS 
PURSUANT TO THE TEXAS CITIZENS PARTICIPATION ACT 

 
TO THE HONORABLE COURT: 
 
 Defendant JAMIE MARCHI (“Jamie”) moves this Court pursuant to TEX. CIV. PRAC. & 

REM. CODE §27.003 to dismiss all claims set out in the Plaintiff’s Petition in the above-styled and 

numbered cause, and in support of this motion shows: 

I. SUMMARY OF MOTION 

1. Plaintiff’s lawsuit is an unabashed ploy to quiet his victims and is the precise 

scenario the Texas Legislature sought to prevent when it enacted the Texas Citizens Participation 

Act in 2011. As established below, Plaintiff’s legal action must be dismissed because (a) Jamie’s 

complained-of statements are protected by her constitutional rights of free speech and association, 

(b) Plaintiff is a public figure, and (c) because Plaintiff cannot put forth clear and specific evidence 

of each element of each of his claims against Jamie. Jamie therefore asks the Court to dismiss 

Plaintiff’s claims against her in accordance with the Texas Citizens Participation Act, and to award 

Jamie her attorney’s fees, costs, and sanctions to send a message to abusers across Texas that they 

cannot use the Texas judicial system to intimidate their victims into silence.  
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II. EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF MOTION 

2. In support of this Motion, Jamie relies upon the following competent evidence, all 

of which is incorporated herein by reference: 

DESCRIPTION OF EVIDENCE ABBREVIATION DATE EXHIBIT 
Declaration of Jamie Marchi Marchi Dec. 07/05/19 A 

Marchi Statement via Twitter Marchi Stmt. 02/08/19 A-1 
Demand for Preservation of ESI Preservation Ntc. 03/08/19 A-2 

   Cease & Desist; Retraction 
Letter 

C&D 04/12/19 A-3 

Deposition of Victor Mignogna Mignogna Depo. 06/26/19 B 
 
Pursuant to TEX. R. CIV. P. 58, Jamie incorporates and adopts by reference the evidence attached 

to Defendant Funimation Productions, LLC’s Motion to Dismiss Under the TCPA and to 

Defendants Monica Rial and Ronald Toye’s Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to the Texas Citizens 

Participation Act. 

III. FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

3. Jamie is a voice actor and writer who primarily works in the anime industry.1 The 

term “anime” refers to hand-drawn and/or computer animation originating from or associated with 

Japan. In fact, “anime” is the Japanese word for “animation,” but outside of Japan is used to 

describe animation from Japan or that closely mimics it in style and theme. Plaintiff is one of the 

most ubiquitous voice actors in the anime genre, credited with over 356 productions on the Internet 

Movie Database (“IMDB”).2 He also voiced the title character in Dragon Ball Super: Broly, the 

third-highest grossing anime film of all time in the United States.3 Indeed, Plaintiff can hardly 

walk in to an anime convention without being immediately recognized.4 

 
1 Marchi Dec. ¶2 (Ex. A). 
2 Mignogna Depo. p. 242, lines 14-17 (Ex. B). 
3 Mignogna Depo. p. 241, lines 13-17 (Ex. B). 
4 Mignogna Depo. p. 243, lines 3-7 (Ex. B). 
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4. In approximately 2011, Jamie worked as a voice actor for Funimation Productions, 

LLC (“Funimation”).5 On one occasion while at Funimation’s headquarters in Flower Mound, 

Texas, Jamie was waiting in the lobby when Plaintiff Victor Mignogna (“Plaintiff”) approached 

her.6 Considering that they knew each other (or at least Jamie thought she knew Plaintiff), and that 

it is a common greeting among creatives in the anime industry, Jamie gave Plaintiff a hug.7 What 

Jamie did not, and could not, anticipate was what happened next. Commenting on Jamie’s hair, 

Plaintiff began running his hand through the back of Jamie’s hair, until his palm found the back of 

her skull.8 Plaintiff splayed his fingers and moved his hand to the base of Jamie’s skull, after which 

he clenched his hand into a fist, grabbing her hair at the roots, and jerked his fist – yanking Jamie’s 

head backward.9 Having control of Jamie, Plaintiff then pressed his lips to her ear and whispered 

something sexual to her.10 Jamie doesn’t remember the specific words Plaintiff spewed at her that 

day, but she very much recalls the way she felt violated, out of control, and intimidated.11 At all 

times during Plaintiff’s assault on Jamie, she did not consent to, nor want, such contact as was 

imposed upon her.12 Shocked and stunned by what Plaintiff had done to her, Jamie never felt safe 

at Funimation again when Plaintiff was around.13 Considering that Plaintiff was one of the most 

ubiquitous voice actors on the convention circuit, Jamie felt that nobody would even believe her 

if she told her story, let alone have her career survive.14 Like countless victims before her, she kept 

her story to herself as a means of protecting herself from retribution or, worse, further trauma.15 

 
5 Marchi Dec. ¶2 (Ex. A). 
6 Marchi Dec. ¶2 (Ex. A). 
7 Marchi Dec. ¶2 (Ex. A); Mignogna Depo. p. p. 218, lines 4-18 (Ex. B). 
8 Marchi Dec. ¶3 (Ex. A); see Mignogna Depo. p. 218, lines 4-18 (Ex. B). 
9 Marchi Dec. ¶3 (Ex. A); see Mignogna Depo. p. 218, lines 4-18 (Ex. B). 
10 Marchi Dec. ¶3 (Ex. A). 
11 Marchi Dec. ¶3 (Ex. A). 
12 Marchi Dec. ¶3 (Ex. A). 
13 Marchi Dec. ¶4 (Ex. A). 
14 Marchi Dec. ¶4 (Ex. A). 
15 Marchi Dec. ¶4 (Ex. A). 
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5. Rumors about Plaintiff had swirled in anime circles for years before Jamie’s 2011 

encounter with him, so much so that Plaintiff held a “rumor panel” at an anime convention years 

ago to address the various “rumors” plaguing him for much of his career.16 At the beginning of 

2019, Plaintiff’s victims started speaking out about the pain Plaintiff had wrought upon them. 

Seeing the hatred and shame Plaintiff’s followers attempted to hurl at Plaintiff’s victims online, 

Jamie could no longer stay silent.17 On February 8, 2019, Jamie bravely told the true story of her 

encounter with Plaintiff so many years before: 

Several years ago, I was in the lobby at my job when I was approached by a co-
worker. This guy gave me the creeps already (he gave almost all the women at my 
job the creeps), but I always felt like I had to be nice to him anyway because of how 
revered he was in the industry; we hug a lot, and on occasion, will give a kiss on 
the cheek. But even for an affectionate environment, this felt off. I didn’t say 
anything to him about it, though. It was just his fingers in my hair; I didn’t think it 
was a big deal. At that point, he splayed his fingers, put his hand at the base of my 
skull, and made a fist. When he did this, he grabbed my hair close to the root, 
effectively preventing me from moving my head at all. He then jerked his fist, 
yanking my head backwards and towards him, and whispered something in my ear. 
I don’t remember what he said specifically, but I do remember it being sexual in 
nature. This was not normal. This was not just a hug or a kiss on the cheek. I did 
not like it. I have no memory of getting out of his grasp, but I assume, “What the 
fuck are you doing” was part of my technique.18 

 
The full text of Jamie’s statement is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 and incorporated herein in full 

by reference. In it, Jamie opens up about the emotions and trauma that accompany such an 

encounter, while acknowledging that she had a generally less-intrusive experience than other 

women she heard from. Admittedly, she identifies Plaintiff by name, but she does so only as a 

means of reaching out to the uncounted women still reeling in silence from what they’ve been 

through and offering them solidarity in their recovery.19 

 
16 Marchi Dec. ¶5 (Ex. A); Mignogna Depo. p. 199, line 11 – p. 200, line 15 (Ex. B). 
17 Marchi Dec. ¶5 (Ex. A). 
18 Marchi Stmt. (Ex. A-1). 
19 See Marchi Dec. ¶5 (Ex. A). 
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6. The public response to Jamie’s statement – like many other of Plaintiff’s victims – 

has been one of dichotomy. One the one hand, other of Plaintiff’s victims, Jamie’s fans and friends, 

and supporters of women’s right to be free from control or invasion by others have all been 

outspoken in their support of Jamie and her strength and courage. On the other hand, Plaintiff’s 

supporters have incited a remorseless revenge campaign aimed at disparaging, demeaning, and 

further objectifying Plaintiff’s victims. Jamie has been harassed online, ridiculed in the most 

misogynistic of ways, and had her physical safety threatened by Plaintiff’s fans.20  

7. On March 8, 2019, Jamie received from Plaintiff a demand that she preserve all 

electronically stored information and other information relevant to the claims and defenses 

asserted in this matter.21 Ironically, though, Plaintiff himself allegedly has a policy of immediately 

deleting his own electronically stored information and has done so even after anticipating litigation 

in this matter, and also swapped his old iPhone out for a new one just as this litigation was getting 

started.22 Less than a month later, Plaintiff sent Jamie correspondence asking her to correct, clarify, 

or retract some of her tweets.23 

8. Many of the statements complained of by Plaintiff in his April 12, 2019 take-down 

letter to Jamie neither refer to Plaintiff nor contain any statement(s) of fact, nor even rise to the 

level of an actionable publication:24 

DATE OF CITED TWEET MISSING ELEMENTS 
02/06/2019 at 9:05 p.m. - Reference to Plaintiff 

- Statement of Fact 
02/07/2019 at 12:32 a.m. - Reference to Plaintiff 

- Statement of Fact 
02/07/2019 at [unknown time] - Statement of Fact 
02/08/2019 at 3:50 p.m. - False Statement of Fact 

 
20 Marchi Dec. ¶6 (Ex. A). 
21 See Preservation Ntc. (Ex. A-2). 
22 Mignogna Depo. p. (Ex. B). 
23 C&D (Ex. A-3). 
24 C&D (Ex. A-3). 
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While some of the cited tweets admittedly contain strongly worded opinion commentary, none are 

false statements of fact made by Plaintiff with knowledge of their falsity or reckless disregard of 

whether or not they were true.25 Certainly none were made with malice – only the intent to protect 

herself and others.26 The sole statement by Jamie that contains any statement of fact referring to 

Plaintiff that is susceptible to truth or falsity was borne of her need to tell her truth about what 

Plaintiff did to her.27  

9. While sworn under oath in his deposition, Plaintiff plainly admitted to assaulting 

Plaintiff in exactly the same manner as described by Jamie in her statement: 

And I’m like, oh, my gosh, I love your hair. And she’s like, I know, I just got it – 
and I walked around the – the – the counter, and I was kind of standing there kind 
of flipping it and like oh, my gosh, it’s really beautiful, I love it. And I – and I put 
my hand up in the bottom of it and I’m like, oh, this is great.28 

 
Though the camera veered slightly to the right just before, Plaintiff even gestured on camera about 

the tight grasp he had over Jamie: 

 
 

 
25 See generally Marchi Dec. (Ex. A); see generally Mignogna Depo. pp. 247-251. 
26 Marchi Dec. ¶¶5-6 (Ex. A). 
27 Marchi Dec. ¶5 (Ex. A). 
28 Mignogna Depo. p. 218, lines 4-18 (Ex. B). 
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Plaintiff then had the audacity to interpret how he thought Jamie should have felt: 

It was not painful, it was not hurtful, it was not sexual, and it happened at least four 
or five years ago, maybe longer. 29 

 
If Plaintiff objects to Jamie’s characterization of the hair-pulling incident, his appropriate course 

of action would be to not have pulled her hair in the first place. This is bolstered by Plaintiff’s own 

admission that individuals can perceive the same situation differently, and that Ms. Marchi could 

have perceived her hair being pulled differently than Plaintiff did.30 Nothing in this legal action 

or any other forum can change the fact that what Jamie reported in her statement really 

happened and that she has a constitutional right to speak out about it, a right which is 

protected by – among other things – the TCPA. 

IV. APPLICABILITY OF TCPA 

10. Chapter 27 of the Civil Practices and Remedies Code, also known as the Texas 

Citizens Participation Act (“TCPA”), applies to this action. The purpose of the TCPA is to 

“encourage and safeguard the constitutional rights of persons to…speak freely…” TEX. CIV. PRAC. 

& REM. CODE §27.001(6). 

11. Date of Filing of Legal Action. Plaintiff’s lawsuit, which is included in the 

definition of “legal action,” was filed on April 18, 2019. The TCPA applies to legal actions filed 

on or after June 17, 2011. 

12. Constitutional Rights of Free Speech and Association. This legal action is based 

on, relates to, or is in response to Jamie’s exercise of her right of free speech – a right guaranteed 

to her under both the First Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 8 

of the Texas Constitution. The exercise of the right of free speech is defined as “a communication 

 
29 Mignogna Depo. p. 218, lines 4-18 (Ex. B). 
30 Mignogna Depo. p. 254, lines 18-21; p. 255, lines 9-11 (Ex. B). 
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made in connection with a matter of public concern.” TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.001(3). 

Jamie’s constitutional right of free speech is implicated by Plaintiff’s lawsuit because, among other 

things, (a) Plaintiff is a public figure, and (b) Jamie’s complained-of statements implicate 

community well-being and community health and safety. Jamie’s statements were thus made in 

connection with a matter of public concern. See TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.001(7).  

Jamie’s statements were further protected by her right of association, to which Plaintiff’s legal 

action is also in response. 

13. Motion Timely Filed. Jamie was served with process in this legal action on May 

23, 2019. This motion is filed not later than the sixtieth (60th) day after the date of service and is 

therefore timely. TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §§27.003(a). 

V. DISMISSAL REQUIRED BY TCPA 

14. TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.005 requires the Court to dismiss this legal 

action if Marchi establishes by a preponderance of the evidence that the challenged claims are 

based on, relate to, or are in response to Jamie’s exercise of her right of free speech and/or right of 

association, and Plaintiff cannot establish by clear and specific evidence a prima facie case for 

each essential element of those claims. 

A. Jamie’s Statements Involved a Matter of Public Concern 

1. Plaintiff is a Public Figure 

15. In addition to the evidence and argument stated herein, Jamie incorporates by 

reference the evidence and arguments in Defendant Funimation Productions, LLC’s Motion to 

Dismiss Under the TCPA (filed July 1, 2019) and Defendants Monica Rial and Ronald Toye’s 

Motion to Dismiss under the Texas Citizens Participation Act (filed July 19, 2019). TEX. R. CIV. 

P. 58. 
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16. Plaintiff cannot in good faith deny that he is a public figure. There are two 

categories of public figure status under Texas law: general-purpose and limited-purpose. General-

purpose public figures have achieved “such pervasive fame or notoriety that they become public 

figures for all purposes and in all contexts.” WFAA-TV, Inc. v. McLemore, 978 S.W.2d 568, 571 

(Tex. 1998). Limited-purpose public figures, however, are public figures merely for a limited range 

of issues surrounding a particular public controversy. Id. 

a. Plaintiff is a General-Purpose Public Figure 

17. A “public figure” is a person with “general fame or notoriety in the community.” 

Gertz v. Robert Welch, Inc., 418 U.S. 323, 351-52 (1974).  

18. Among other things, Plaintiff testified in his deposition that: 

a. He has a fan club, called the “Risembool Rangers,” who found his notoriety so 
compelling as to dub him with the title of “Fuhrer.”31 
 

b. He has been in movies, TV shows, and has voice acted for hundreds of Japanese 
anime films.32 

 
c. He has been a voice actor for almost 20 years and has been repeatedly hired over 

that time period because “somebody” must think he’s good at what he does.33 
 

d. Thousands of convention attendees come to see Plaintiff and/or meet him.34 
 

e. Allegations about Plaintiff’s homophobia, anti-Semitism, and sexual harassment 
are being discussed publicly.35 

 
f. The alleged Minnesota attorney who started Plaintiff’s quarter-million-dollar legal 

war chest reached out to Plaintiff without having ever known him before.36 
 

g. A lot of people have used Plaintiff’s face and name over the years for their own 
purposes without Plaintiff’s involvement.37 

 
 

31 Mignogna Depo., p. 14, line 22 – p. 15, line 6 (Ex. B). 
32 Mignogna Depo., p. 23, lines 22 – 25 (Ex. B). 
33 Mignogna Depo., p. 26, lines 11-19 (Ex. B). 
34 Mignogna Depo., p. 24, lines 1-3; p.27, lines 6-8 (Ex. B). 
35 Mignogna Depo., p. 30, lines 13-16 (Ex. B). 
36 Mignogna Depo., p. 36, lines 9-20; p. 37, lines 22-24 (Ex. B). 
37 Mignogna Depo., p. 42, lines 15-21 (Ex. B). 
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h. Plaintiff has approximately 113,000 Twitter followers.38 
 

i. Plaintiff also writes music and sings, and anyone who lives in the Dallas/Fort Worth 
Metroplex has likely heard a few of his “jingles” on the radio.39 

 
j. Plaintiff is allegedly so popular that he gets invited to conventions multiple times 

in a row, breaking common practice for most convention invitees.40 
 

There are multiple other citations available, but in the interest of brevity, Jamie is confident that 

these admissions alone will foreclose any claimed argument by Plaintiff that he is not a general-

purpose public figure. 

b. Alternatively, Plaintiff is a Limited-Purpose Public Figure 

19. The Texas Supreme Court relies on a three-part test in determining whether an 

individual is a limited purpose public figure: (1) the controversy at issue must be public both in 

the sense that people are discussing it and people other than the immediate participants in the 

controversy are likely to feel the impact of its resolution; (2) Plaintiff must have more than a trivial 

or tangential role in the controversy, and (3) the alleged defamation must be germane to Plaintiff’s 

participation in the controversy. See WFAA-TV, 978 S.W.2d at 571. Alternative to her argument 

that Plaintiff is a general-purpose public figure, Jamie argues that Plaintiff is a limited-purpose 

public figure. Specifically (i) there is ample evidence in the Court’s record that multiple people 

are discussing the statements about Plaintiff’s abuses, (ii) Plaintiff is the center of such 

controversy, has injected himself directly into it, and has far beyond merely a tangential or trivial 

role therein, and (iii) the statements of which Plaintiff complains are directly germane to Plaintiff’s 

participation in this controversy.  

 

 
38 Mignogna Depo., p. 48, lines 216-21 (Ex. B). 
39 Mignogna Depo., p. 93, line 23 – p. 94, line 5 (Ex. B). 
40 Mignogna Depo., p. 101, lines 13-23 (Ex. B). 
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2. Jamie’s Statements Relate to Health, Safety, and Community Well-Being 

20. Texas courts recognize that when a statement concerns even just an individual’s 

state of safety, the TCPA applies. See, e.g., Bilbrey v. Williams, NO. 02-13-00332-CV, 2015 WL 

1120921 at *8-9 (Tex. App.—Fort Worth Mar. 12, 2015, no pet.); Backes v. Misko, 486 S.W.3d 

7, 18-20 (Tex. App.—Dallas Mar. 13, 2015, pet. denied). Not only do Jamie’s statements relate to 

her own state of safety,41 but she declared at the time of making them that her intent was to protect 

and acknowledge Plaintiff’s other past and future victims: 

...Had I been able to speak up then, maybe less women would have had to 
experience what happened… 
 
…But, in this moment, I want the others to who I know are out there to hear this: it 
wasn’t just you. It’s okay if you didn’t say anything, to him or anyone else. You are 
not responsible for what happened. You do not have to be dismissive, ashamed, or 
afraid. Also, I hope if anyone ever goes through a similar experience, they will 
know from the start that their body is not up for debate. Their body is not property 
of the most popular person in the room. Their body is not responsible for a 
company, or a show, or an artform. Their body is most definitely not responsible 
for the reputation and livelihood of a predator.42 

 
Multiple Texas courts have held that statements about mental illness, domestic abuse, murder-for-

hire ploys, and other situational statements were matters of public concern under the TCPA. See 

generally Cavin v. Abbott, 545 S.W.3d 47, 60-64 (Tex. App.—Austin 2017, no pet.); Warner Bros. 

Entm’t, Inc. v. Jones, 538 S.W.3d 781, 797-798 (Tex. App.-Austin 2017, no pet.); Backes v. Misko, 

486 S.W.3d 7, 17-20 (Tex. App.—Dallas 2015, pet. denied). Not only does Jamie’s statement meet 

this standard inherently, she even stated at the time of publication that her intent was to tell the 

truth about her own experience and protect other of Plaintiff’s victims, whether past or future. One 

struggles to think of a statement better classified as relating to health, safety, and community well-

 
41 Marchi Dec. ¶5-6 (Ex. A). 
42 Marchi Stmt. (Ex. A-1). 
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being. The Court’s record is replete with accounts of Plaintiff engaging in the same – or worse – 

behavior directed at other women. 

21. The TCPA ultimately applies because Jamie’s complained-of statements are 

protected by her right of free speech. The TCPA defines that right as any communication made in 

connection with a “matter of public concern.” TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.001(7); see also 

Adams v. Starside Custom Builders, LLC, 547 S.W.3d 890 (Tex. 2018). As established above, the 

TCPA is irrefutably applicable to Plaintiff’s legal action. 

B. Jamie Was Exercising Her Right of Association 

22. This Court must also dismiss Plaintiff’s legal action because it is based on, relates 

to, or is in response to Jamie’s exercise of her right of association. TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE 

§27.005(b); see MacFarland v. Le-Vel Brands, LLC (Tex. App.—Dallas Mar. 23, 2017, no pet).. 

The exercise of the right of association is defined in the TCPA as “a communication between 

individuals who join together to collectively express, promote, pursue, or defend common 

interests.” TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.001(2). Texas courts broadly construe the TCPA’s 

reference to communications between individuals joining together to express, promote, or defend 

common interests. See Fawcett v. Grosu, 498 S.W.3d 650 (Tex. App.—Houston [14th Dist.] 2016, 

pet. denied). 

23. Again, Jamie’s statements were made in the exercise of her association with the 

broader anime community, fan community, and women who may in the past or future come into 

contact with Plaintiff. Jamie evinced this most strongly by sounding her call of empathy to 

Plaintiff’s prior victims and to those who may come after her.43 

 

 
 

43 Marchi Stmt. (Ex. A-1). 
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C. Plaintiff Cannot Provide Clear and Specific Evidence 
for each Essential Element of his Claims against Jamie 

24. Jamie has met her burden to show by a preponderance of the evidence that the 

TCPA applies to this legal action. The burden now shifts to Plaintiff to establish “by clear and 

specific evidence a prima facie case for each essential element of the claim[s] in question.” See 

TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §§27.003, 27.005(b)-(c). Plaintiff’s burden is far more than the 

simple “notice pleading” initially required in a Texas lawsuit; instead, Plaintiff must “provide 

enough detail to show the factual basis” for each element of his claims. In re Lipsky, 460 S.W.3d 

579, 590-91 (Tex. 2015).  

1. Plaintiff Does Not Have Clear and Specific Evidence for His 
Defamation Claim against Jamie 

25. The elements of a defamation claim in Texas are well established. In order to 

survive this Motion, Plaintiff must put forth clear and specific evidence that (a) Jamie published a 

statement of fact, (b) the statement referred to Plaintiff, (c) the statement was defamatory, (d) the 

statement was false, (e) with regard to the truth of the statement, Jamie was acting with actual 

malice – if Plaintiff is a public figure, or negligently – if Plaintiff is a private individual; and (f) 

the statement caused Plaintiff pecuniary injury. See In re Lipsky, 460 S.W.3d 579, 593 (Tex. 2015). 

Because Plaintiff is clearly a public figure, he must show that Jamie acted with actual malice. 

26. The Court’s record is rife with Plaintiff’s own admissions that he lacks evidence of 

more than one statement that even contains a statement of fact referring to him: 

DATE OF CITED TWEET MISSING ELEMENTS ADMISSION OF MISSING ELEMENT44 
02/06/2019 at 9:05 p.m. - Reference to Plaintiff 

- Statement of Fact 
- p. 247, line 4 – p. 248, line 12 
- p. 248, line 25 – p. 249, line 3 

02/07/2019 at 12:32 a.m. - Reference to Plaintiff 
- Statement of Fact 

- p. 250, lines 4 – 24 
- p. 250, line 25 – p. 251, line 2 

02/07/2019 [unknown time] - Statement of Fact - p. 251, line 4 – p. 252, line 20 
 

 
44 Mignogna Depo. (Ex. B). 
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27. The only statement in the record that actually contains a statement of fact about 

Plaintiff is the one in which Jamie outcries with the truth about what Plaintiff did to her – a 

statement that is conspicuously missing from Plaintiff’s original and amended petitions. However, 

Plaintiff admitted to the truth of Jamie’s statement in his deposition.45 At a minimum, Plaintiff is 

unable to summon clear and specific evidence of the falsity of any of Jamie’s statements. Plaintiff 

will also be unable to put forth clear and specific evidence that Jamie acted with malice. Her own 

statement – before involvement of counsel and which she wrote wholly on her own – clarifies that 

her intent was to protect herself and the public at large, and for no other reason.46 

28. Finally, Plaintiff’s claim that any damages were caused by Jamie is, respectfully, 

ludicrous. Plaintiff confirmed that Jamie’s name was never mentioned by Funimation when it was 

conducting the investigation which led to termination of his contract.47 Plaintiff also testified in 

his deposition that Jamie’s statements couldn’t have impacted termination of his contracts with 

conventions before the statements were published.48 Plaintiff is unable to cite to any conventions 

cancelled after the date of Jamie’s statements and admits that he knows of no conventions that 

Jamie even reached out to.49 As of his deposition, Plaintiff was on track for his typical annual 

number of convention appearances, having already appeared in 9 and professing attendance at 20-

30 in any given year.50 In short, other than allegedly hurt feelings – more likely disbelief at the 

resolve of his former victims – Plaintiff has incurred no damages as the result of any statement 

made or allegedly made by Jamie, and thus he cannot proffer clear and specific evidence of any. 

 

 
 

45 Mignogna Depo. p. 218, lines 4-21 (Ex. B). 
46 Marchi Dec. ¶¶5-6 (Ex. A); Marchi Stmt. (Ex. A-1). 
47 Mignogna Depo. p. 257, line 17 – p. 258, line 5 (Ex. B). 
48 Mignogna Depo. p. 260, lines 1- 11 [up to “obviously.”] (Ex. B). 
49 Mignogna Depo. p. 257, lines 14 – 16 (Ex. B). 
50 Mignogna Depo. p. 223, lines 21-25 (Ex. B). 
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2. Plaintiff Does Not Have Clear and Specific Evidence for His 
Claim against Jamie for Tortious Interference with Existing Contracts 

29. In order to survive this Motion, Plaintiff must put forth clear and specific evidence 

that (a) Plaintiff had a valid contract, (b) Jamie willfully and intentionally interfered with the 

contract, (c) Jamie’s interference proximately caused Plaintiff’s alleged injury, and (d) Plaintiff 

incurred actual damage or loss. See Butnaru v. Ford Motor Co., 84 S.W.3d 198, 207 (Tex. 2002).  

Jamie incorporates her argument and citations in Paragraph 28 above. 

3. Plaintiff Does Not Have Clear and Specific Evidence for His 
Claim against Jamie for Tortious Interference with Prospective Relations 

30. Plaintiff must prove with clear and specific evidence that (a) there was a reasonable 

probability that he would have entered into a business relationship with a third person, (b) Jamie 

intentionally interfered with the relationship, (c) Jamie’s conduct was independently tortious or 

unlawful, (d) Jamie’s interference proximately caused Plaintiff’s alleged injury, and (e) Plaintiff 

suffered actual damage or loss, in order to sustain his claim against Jamie for tortious interference 

with prospective relations. Coinmach Corp. v. Aspenwood Apt. Corp., 417 S.W.3d 909, 923 (Tex. 

2013). Jamie incorporates her argument and citations in Paragraph 28 above. 

4. Plaintiff Does Not Have Clear and Specific Evidence for His 
Claim against Jamie for Civil Conspiracy 

31. In order to survive this Motion, Plaintiff must put forth clear and specific evidence 

that (a) Jamie was a member of a combination of two or more persons, (b) the object of the 

combination was to accomplish either (i) an unlawful purpose or (ii) a lawful purpose by unlawful 

means, (c) the members had a meeting of the minds on the object or course of action, (d) one of 

the members committed an unlawful, overt act to further the object or course of action, and (e) 

Plaintiff suffered injury as a proximate result of the wrongful act. Chon Tri v. J.T.T., 162 S.W.3d 

552, 556 (Tex. 2005). 
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32. Finding no reasonable guess as to the actual basis for this claim asserted by 

Plaintiff, Jamie looks to Plaintiff’s live petition for guidance, but finds none there. Suffice it to say 

that Plaintiff can neither conjure a good faith argument, let alone produce clear and specific 

evidence, of each element of his unfounded claim for civil conspiracy. Moreover, Jamie again 

incorporates her argument and citations in Paragraph 28 above. 

VI. REQUEST FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND SANCTIONS 

33. Jamie is entitled to recover an award of sanctions, costs, reasonable attorney’s fees, 

and other expenses incurred in conjunction with the dismissal. See TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE 

§27.009. An award of attorney’s fees to a successful movant is mandatory under the TCPA, and 

Jamie is entitled to her other expenses under principles of justice and equity. See Sullivan v. 

Abraham, 488 S.W.3d 294, 299 (Tex. 2016). Moreover, the Court must also award sanctions in 

order to deter other, similar actions where attempts are made to intimidate brave victims into 

silence where they have taken the forthright step of speaking out about what happened to them. 

See TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.009(2). Particularly where a quarter-million-dollar war 

chest has been gathered from other people to pay his legal expenses, Plaintiff has no reason to 

avoid specious lawsuits in the future without learning his lesson in this one. 

VII. STAY OF DISCOVERY 

34. Pursuant to TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. CODE §27.003(c), all discovery in this legal 

action is stayed until the Court has ruled on this Motion to Dismiss. 

VIII. CONCLUSION 

35. Gone are the days when aggressors could intimidate their victims into silence. Of 

the various rights afforded under the Constitution, the rights of free speech and association are 

certainly the dearest. And despite this, Plaintiff has seen fit to bully his victims by his abuse of this 
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Court’s jurisdiction. When the Texas Legislature adopted the TCPA, it was precisely with legal 

actions such as Plaintiff’s in mind – stopping them, in particular. After reviewing the evidentiary 

record on file and the briefing based on same, this Court must dismiss Plaintiff’s action and claims 

against Jamie, for reasons Plaintiff was likely aware of well before filing. Yet Plaintiff has 

continued his harm by forcing Jamie and the other defendants to defend his dubious claims even 

this far. No more. It is incumbent upon this Court to find the TCPA applicable, that Plaintiff could 

not meet his burden thereunder, and to dismiss Plaintiff’s claims accordingly. Costs, attorney’s 

fees, and sanctions must also be assessed against Plaintiff in favor of Jamie as requested herein 

and as mandated by the TCPA. Key to granting such relief, perhaps more than anything else, is the 

truth and intent of Jamie’s statements, which are as undeniable as they are instructive. 

 WHEREFORE, Jamie Marchi requests that this Court expedite the hearing of this Motion, 

dismiss with prejudice the Plaintiff’s claims as specified in this Motion, and award sanctions, costs, 

and attorney’s fees with respect to the challenged claims as to Defendant Jamie Marchi. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
JOHNSON & SPARKS PLLC 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 

SAMUEL H. JOHNSON 
State Bar No. 24065507 
7161 Bishop Road, Suite 220 
Plano, Texas 75024 
972.918.5274 (phone/fax) 
sam@johnsonsparks.com 
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT JAMIE MARCHI 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 The undersigned does hereby certify that, in accordance with Rule 21a of the Texas Rules 
of Civil Procedure, a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing has been forwarded to all 
counsel of record on July 19, 2019. 
 

 ______________________________ 
Samuel H. Johnson 
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CAUSE NO. 141-307474-19 

VICTOR MIGNOGNA, 
Plaintiff, 

V. 

FUNIMATION PRODUCTIONS, LLC, 
JAMIE MARCID , MONICA RIAL AND 
RONALD TOYE 

Defendants . 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT 

141 ST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS 

DECLARATION OF JAMIE MARCID 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

Pursuant to TEX. CIV . PRAC. & REM . CODE §132.001, Jamie Marchi, Defendant in the 

above-styled and numbered cause, hereby states as follows: 

1. My name is Jamie Marchi. I am an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years and am 

physically and mentally competent to testify to the matters set forth in this Declaration . 

2. I am a voice actor and writer, primarily in the anime industry. In approximately 

2011, I was in the lobby at Funimation Production, LLC's ("Funimation") building, where I was 

a voice actor at the time. I saw Plaintiff Victor Mignogna ("Plaint iff'') and said hello . Plaintiff 

walked over to me and we gave each other a hug, which is a relatively common greeting among 

voice actors who've worked together before. An uncommon greeting, though, is what Plaintiff did 

next. 

3. While still standing in the Funimation lobby, Plaintiff started running his fingers 

through my hair. This behavior made me uncomfortable, but I did not object verbally because I 

thought it would end as quickly as it began. When Plaintiffs hands reached the roots of my hair 

across the back of my head, he splayed his fingers and moved his hand to the base of my skull, 

DECLARATION OF JAMIE MARCHI PAGElOF3 

Copy from re:SearchTX



then clenched his hand into a fist. In so doing, Plaintiff grabbed my hair close to the root and then 

jerked his fist, which abruptly, unexpectedly, and painfully yanked my head backwards. Plaintiff 

then leaned slightly in, having already taken control of my head, and pressed his lips to my ear 

before whispering a sexual statement to me. I do not recall the specific words he said , but I know 

with certainty they were of a sexual nature directed at me. I felt helpless, out of control of my own 

body, and grossly intimidated by Plaintiffs unwanted and uninvited contact and words imposed 

upon me. 

4. After escaping his grasp, I was shocked and stunned by what had just happened. I 

felt unsafe at my own workplace. I nevertheless dismissed the experience without report ing it to 

Funimation. Plaintiff is widely known in the anime world , has a loyal and broad following of fans, 

and on top of that he was one of the most ubiquitous voice actors on the convention circuit. I did 

not feel that I could go up against Plaintiff with a wide public persona and vast fanbase and still 

have my career survive . 

5. In early 2019, women began coming out with the truth about their various 

experiences with Plaintiff - something that I'd heard or read for many years before from various 

women. I realized then that my experience was not unique , and I made the brave decision to 

publicly state the truth about what Plaintiff did to me. I thus wrote a statement via Twitter on 

February 8, 2019 so that other women who were victims of Plaintiff or other aggressors would 

know that they are not alone, and that they can stand up for themselves and speak out, and to 

confirm for all of us that our bodies are our own, and only we can decide what is done with them. 

A true and correct copy of my Twitter statement is attached hereto as "Exhibit A-1." I was the only 

author of my statement, and I still believe it was important to post as a means of showing solidarity 

and empathy with Plaintiffs (and other aggressors') other victims. 
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6. Since telling the truth about what Plaintiff did to me, I have been harassed, 

threatened, and lambasted by an army of in-person and online "trolls" at Plaintiff's and his 

attorneys' bidding. Despite the danger to my life and my family, I am steadfast in the need to speak 

the truth. I have not made these statements out of malice or any desire to hurt Plaintiff. I admittedly 

felt, and still feel, anger toward Plaintiff, and hurt at what he made me endure, and I hope his life 

experiences will teach him to behave differently. But my intent in my outcry was always to provide 

an opportunity for healing and encouragement for bravery for both myself and other victims. 

7. I did not communicate with Funimation Productions, LLC regarding Plaintiff while 

it was investigating allegations about his conduct prior to terminating his contract. Likewise, I did 

not reach out to any convention or other production company to discuss Plaintiff or encourage -

either expressly or implicitly - to reduce or terminate their business dealings with him as a result 

of the allegations against him. 

8. Attached hereto as exhibits A-2 and A-3 are true and correct copies of 

correspondence I received from Plaintiff. 

My name is Jamie Marchi, my date of birth is October 8, 1977 and my address is 9411 

Timberleaf Drive, Dallas, Texas, USA. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 

and correct. 

Executed in Dallas County, State of Texas, on the 18th day of July, 2019. 
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BEARD• HARRIS• BULLOCK• HUGHES 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

March 8, 2019 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL AND EMAIL (mymarchi@gmail.com) 
Jamie Marchi 
9411 TimberleafDrive 
Dallas, TX 75243-6123 

RE: Vic Mignogna 

DEMAND FOR PRESERVATION OF ELECTRONICALLY STORED INFORMATION 

Dear Ms. Marchi: 

Please be advised that Ty Beard and Beard, Harris, Bullock Hughes have been retained to 
represent Mr. Vic Mignogna regarding allegations of defamation, tortious interference with 
business relations and civil conspiracy. Please be advised that you need to protect and preserve 
all electronically stored data currently in your possession. This electronically stored data is an 
important, irreplaceable source of discovery and/or evidence in this matter. This notice requests 
preservation of all information from your computer systems (including hard drives), cell phone 
systems, PDA's, email systems, software systems, and other removable electronic media as well 
as the computer systems (including hard drives), cell phone systems, PDA's, email systems, 
software systems, and other removable electronic media which are in your possession. This 
includes, but is not limited to, email and other electronic communications, word processing 
documents, spreadsheets, data bases, calendars, telephone logs, instant messages, video files, 
picture files, any files associated with your google accounts, yahoo accounts or outlook accounts, 
text messages, internet usage files, social networking sites, and network access information. 
Failure to comply with this request could result in spoliation issues. 

Please note that litigation is reasonably likely. Accordingly, you have a duty ( even 
without a court order) to preserve information that is relevant to the potential dispute over 
termination of Vic's relationship with FUNimation and Roosterteeth and damage to his 
reputation and career, including, without limitation, information relating to: (i) Vic's work for 
FUNimation and Roosterteeth, (ii) the circumstances surrounding termination of his relationship 
with FUNimation and Roosterteeth, (iii) the history of, basis for, and decision to publish tweets 
related to Vic Mignogna since January 18, 2019, (iv) all information related to investigations by 
FUNimation or Sony and Roosterteeth into allegations that Vic engaged in "any kind of 
harassment or threatening behavior being directed at anyone" and the "testimony, proof, [ and] 
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

evidence" given therein including the investigations referenced in numerous tweets by yourself, 
(v) and any and all communications between yourself and FUNimation, yourself and 
Roosterteeth and yourself and any persons who have made allegations that Vic engaged in "any 
kind of harassment or threatening behavior directed at anyone" and the "testimony, proof [and] 
evidence" provided through said communications and (vi) any and all communications between 
yourself and Vic Mignogna referencing any allegations that Vic engaged in "any kind of 
harassment or threatening behavior being directed at anyone including yourself' and the 
"testimony, proof, [ and] evidence" provided. 

This duty extends not only to tangible items but also to electronically stored information 
("ESI"). ESI should be afforded the broadest possible definition and includes, without limiting, 
documents, spreadsheets, presentations, calendars, diaries, communications, recordings, 
photographs, logs, data and databases, backup and archival files, and other data, files and records 
that are electronically, magnetically or optically stored on current or former computer systems 
and other media and devices (including cell phones, tablets, online repositories and messaging 
systems) used by yourself. ESI resides not only in areas of electronic, magnetic and optical 
storage media you may consider reasonably accessible but also in areas you may deem not 
reasonably accessible; your obligation to preserve potentially relevant evidence extends to both 
of these sources of ESL ESI includes both system metadata (i.e., information describing the 
history and characteristics of other ESI) and application metadata (i.e., information that is 
automatically included or embedded in electronic files). 

Adequate preservation of ESI requires more than simply refraining from efforts to 
destroy or dispose of such evidence. You must also intervene to prevent the loss or destruction 
of potentially relevant ESI due to routine operations or individual actors and employ proper 
techniques and protocols suited to protecting ESI such as (i) initiating a "litigation hold" for 
potentially relevant ESI, (ii) identifying and modifying or suspending features of systems and 
devices that, in routine operation, cause the loss of potentially relevant ESI, (iii) securing and 
preserving items required to access or search ESI such as passwords, keys, and other 
authenticators, as well as hardware and peripherals required to access the ESI, and (iv) informing 
your employees, contractors, officers, directors and agents of the obligation to preserve 
potentially relevant ESI ( and the ability to access or search same) and taking steps to prevent 
their hiding, destroying or altering potentially relevant ESL Item (iv) may involve preservation 
of potentially relevant ESI on home or personal devices - as well as online or browser-based 
accounts or services - used by yourself and agents if they forwarded, created, viewed or stored 
potentially relevant ESI using such devices, accounts or systems. 
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Without limiting or diminishing your obligation to preserve potentially relevant ESI ( or 
limiting or diminishing your obligation to preserve documents, tangible things and other 
potentially relevant evidence), you are requested to preserve potentially relevant ESI with a 
"created" or "last modified" date of January 1, 2017 or later. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. If you have questions or concerns, please feel 
free to contact myself or Beard, Harris, Bullock Hughes . during normal business hours. 

cc: Client 
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BEARD• HARRIS• BULLOCK• HUGHES 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

April 12,2019 

VIA Certified Mail (7017 1450 0000 6520 0435) and Email 
(mymarchi@gmail.com) 

Jamie Marchi 
9411 Timberleaf Drive 
Dallas, Texas 75243-6123 

RE: Vic Mignogna; Request for correction, clarification, or retraction pursuant to 
Texas Civil Practice & Remedies Code ("CPRC") §§73.052 et seq. 

Dear Ms. Marchi: 

As you are aware, my firm, Beard Harris Bullock Hughes, has been retained 
to represent Mr. Vic Mignogna regarding false, misleading and unsubstantiated 
statements about him represented as fact. This is a demand specifically relating to 
the publication of status posts and "tweets" via your personal social media 
accounts including @rontoye containing statements that defame Mr. Mignogna. 

The bullet list below sets forth examples of your online statements that 
defame Mr. Mignogna. 

• On February 6, 2019 at 9:05 p.m. on Twitter, you stated, "Yes, I want his 
head. I want his balls. I want him to feel an ounce of the pain he's cause others and 
then fucking choke on it. I want you to take his dick out of your ears so you can 
actually hear reality. But, you know, that's just me." This statement is not only 
defamatory and false but purely malicious. You have not personally witnessed any 
of the alleged incidents that you claim Mr. Mignogna committed to cause pain to 
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

others. You imply he has committed some type of criminal offense worthy of 
castration yet have zero facts to validate what led to this threatening, hateful tweet 
you made toward another human being. 

• The Twitter statement on February 8, 2019 at 3:50 p.m. where you told, 
"Your story" is attached due to the lengthy nature of this tweet. The defamatory 
parts of this tweet include the statement that "he gave almost all the women at my 
job the creeps." Clearly false as he had been working at this company for 15 years 
and had friends. Your claim that he whispered something "sexual in nature" to you 
is purely fantasy and is false because you can't remember what he said. You imply 
that he yanked your head backwards which implies he committed some type of 
crime and as you put it "his actions qualify as simple assault." You emphatically 
state that he committed a crime, which is defamatory and false. You indicate half a 
dozen women you personally know came forward with accounts, yet you never 
witnessed a single "account" personally to be able to comment, which means this 
statement is false. Furthermore, you call Mr. Mignogna "a predator." This is 
defamatory and false because there has never been a criminal action against Mr. 
Mignogna where a court determined that he was a predator to anyone. This just 
implies that he is the worst kind of criminal and he clearly, as evidenced by 
thousands of fans who respect and admire him, is not the truth. 

• On February 7, 2019 at 12:32 a.m. you tweeted, "What would Jesus do? 
Light him on fire and send him to hell." This statement besides being blasphemous 
is defamatory and it too is false. There is not a single place in the Bible where 
Jesus states that he would "light someone on fire and send him to hell." Jesus 
spread the message of love for everyone, not vindictiveness and defamation. 

• The Twitter statement in the same thread as the previous tweet' s state, 
"Fighting back does not, in any way, shape or form, make me as bad as Vic." This 
statement is defamatory and false because Mr. Mignogna, is not a bad person, but 
you imply that he is a bad person akin to a criminal. 
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These specific statements published by you are defamatory because they 
allege that Mr. Mignogna has committed sexual assault and is a sexual predator, 
and they go so far as to endorse these allegations as being based on truth, even 
though no inquiry was ever made into the truth or falsity of those allegations in a 
forum designed to seek the truth. This campaign that you are championing against 
Mr. Mignogna has resulted in loss of employment hy Mr. Mignogna and Mr. 
Mignogna having numerous conventions cancel convention appearances by Mr. 
Mignogna. 

Demand is made that you immediately cease disparaging and defaming Mr. 
Mignogna to anyone in any manner. Further, demand is hereby made that you 
immediately remove any defamatory or disparaging comments posted anywhere on 
the internet, including Twitter, Facebook, the ANN website, Tumblr, and YouTube 
to include all Twitter posts attached to this letter. Demand is further made that you 
publish a retraction of these defamatory statements. 

Please be aware that Mr. Mignogna takes this matter very seriously and 
failure to immediately comply with this demand will result in a lawsuit. Mr. 
Mignogna will use any and all means available to him under the law and/or in 
equity to protect his rights. This includes, but is not limited to, seeking the 
recovery of actual monetary damages and punitive damages suffered as result of 
the canceled conventions, contracts, future contracts and the loss of earnings. 
Based upon what currently exists, we believe that Mr. Mignogna has claims 
against you individually for defamation, defamation per se, tortious interference 
with contract, business disparagement, and intentional infliction of emotional 
distress. 

You are under a continuing obligation to preserve the requested data related 
to Vic Mignogna that exists or may come into existence after the date of this letter. 
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Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please confirm receipt of this 
notice and intention to comply. If you have any questions or concerns regarding 
anything contained in this letter, please feel free to contact myself or Beard, Harris, 
Bullock & Hughes. 

Cc: Client 
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Shannon McCormick O @sadogre · Feb 8 

Replying to @marchimark 

Got yr back 

0 n 99 

Justin Briner O @justinbrine r · Feb 8 

Replying to @marchim ark 
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Thank you for your couraqe . You insp ire me to be stronger .• 
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2/19/2019 Dy69CUjUcAAGnaj.jpg (772><786) 

Several years ago, I was in the lobby at my job when I was 
approached by a co-worker. This guy gave me the creeps 
a I ready {~r---.e -g-e11..Y~C.. .. GJ11.1.Y,~ W-' ..t...Je O e ~ ....... - 1- 11~1'-y -- 11-- -b t ,..._._...,_____..._ 

cree s~, but I always felt like I had to be nice to him anyway 
because of how revered he was in the industry. As we said 
hello, he stood to the side of me and started running his 
fingers through my hair. Now, I do work in an affectionate 
industry; we hug a lot, and on occasion, will give a kiss on 
the cheek. But even for an affectionate environment, this 
felt off. I didn't say anything to him about it, though. It was 
just his fingers in my hair; I didn't think it was a big deal. At 
that point, he splayed his fingers, put his hand at the base 
of my skull, and made a fist. When he did this, he grabbed 
my hair close to the root, effectively preventing me from 
moving my head at all. He then jerked his fist, yanking my 
head backwards and towards him, and whispered 
something in my ear. I don't remember what he said 
specifically, but I do remember it being sexual in nature. 
This was not normal. This was not just a hug or a kiss on the 
cheek. I did not like it. I have no memory of getting out of 
his grasp, but I assume, "What the fuck are you doing?" 
was part of my technique. 

https://pbs.twimg.com/media/Dy69CUjUcAAGnaj .jpg 1/1 
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2/19/2019 Dy69CUdVAAA7Is0.jpg (826x628) 

Afterwards, I completely and utterly dismissed this 
experience. I dismissed the way I had been touched. I 
dismissed having this man grab me. I dismissed having my 
head jerked back. I dismissed the inappropriate comment. I 
dismissed this entire encounter. 

I I never reported this event to the company. It actually 
didn't even occur to me that I should have. Although, if it 

) had occurred to me, I can't say I would have reported him. 
This guy was worshipped by his fans. He was worshipped 
by the studios because of his fans. He was the most 
popular voice actor on the convention circuit. Everyone 
treated him with kid gloves hecause :e s t e__.,., . ..,,-.a d 
nly ic Mig g Who was I? A nobody in comparison. I 

didn't matter, and I knew it. Risking being blacklisted from 
my work and conventions simply wouldn't have been worth 
it. 

https ://pbs .twimg .com/media/Dy69CUdVAAA7Is0.jpg 1/1 
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2/19/2019 Dy69CUeUUAAgmev.jpg (81 Qx630) 

As I look back on this moment and discuss it with my family 
and friends, I can see that ms ~tio:r-is (;ltJaUf as simple 
assa . Would he have gone to jail had I pressed charges? 
I'm not sure. y. o td ~p:le be Ii e me llfe matt._.._.._._.,.,.,_, 
bo1~5:;w~te :St di s . . tlote l obl.lie'S? And even if they did, 
would they care about the truth if that meant tarnishing the 
reputation of their favorite voice actor? 

r- In the last week or so, I've heard accounts of him doing this 
exact thing to a aoze er wame t6at gersonaU~ 
no I am friends with these women and we never told , 

each other about our experiences. Some dismissed it, like 
me. Others felt too ashamed or scared to say anything. I 
struggle with the guilt I feel for having been so dismissive of 
his actions. Had I been able to speak up then, maybe less 
women would have had to experience what happened when 
they were . ab.e o geJ o Vic's grcrst 

https://pbs.twimg.com/media/Dy69CUeUUAAgmev.jpg 1/1 
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2/19/2019 Dy69CUflJ8AAINLy .jpg (782x620) 

I'm speaking up now because I didn't even think about this 
event until I realized other women had experienced the 
same thing. I thought it was just me. And at first, I didn't 
want to say anything because my experience was not nearly 
as bad as what other people have suffered at the hands of 
this man. I wanted their stories to be heard first because 
th-e-y were t·he· ·m · ort -nt ne: .s· Bu· ·-t • - th· ·s·- · ·· o-m· ·· ·· t I w nt _ _ _ _ _ _ .... 1 _p _a o _ . ~-.. , 1n _ 1 . m __ _en_, .. _ a _ 
the others who I know are out there to hear this: it wasn't 

_ just you. It's okay if you didn't say anything, to him or 
r, anyone else. You are not responsible for what happened. 

( 

You do not have to be dismissive, ashamed, or afraid. Also, I 
hope if anyone ever goes through a similar experience, they 
will know from the start that their body is not up for debate. 
Their body is not property of the most popular person in the 
room. Their body is not responsible for a company, or a 
show, or an artform. fien: oay mos ·· efinitely not 

\..:'-=-1~,.....,...LDsjo e for: fne Fe131;;1taf4-en a...._,__ _ _ ,l\teJitiood o a pr: data 

hltps://pbs.twimg.com/media/Dy69CUflJ8AAINLy.jpg 1/1 
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Jamie Marchi 
@marchimark 

What would Jesus do? 

Light him on fire and send him to helL 

12:32 AM • 2/7/19 ~ Twitter Web Client 

60 Retweets 614 Likes 
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Mario Tainaka u i • h 
I want his head, and I want him to suffer 
for what he did to my friend. Not just her 
but every other voice actor or actress 
he's harassed. This has been Going on 
for over a decade he needs to face the 

JoJo [The World ] a 
· I agree that he needs to face the music 

but by getting angry and letting 
ourselves be consumed by rage towards 
a man who's already finished, we're no 
better than he is. 

Jamie Marchi O a hi a • 2h 
I beg to differ. It's time to get angry. It's 
time to stand up. It's time to let our rage 
motivate us into making a change. 
Fighting back does not, in any way, 
shape, or form, make me as bad as Vic. 
That logic is why only 1 out of 3 victims 
come forward. 

Mario Tainaka 
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